
 

            
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 5, 2019, AT 6:30 PM 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 
 

AGENDA 
 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. 
 

3. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
   

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pages 3-5 

Pages 6-8 

Page 9 

Pages 10-13 

 

 

 

 

Pages 14-27 

 

 

Pages 28-45 

 

 

 

 

Pages 46-47 

 

 4. 
 

 5. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 6. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

7. 

 
 

8. 
 

 
9. 

 

 
 
 

 

10. 
 

 

 

 

 

11. 
 

12. 
 

 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

Members of the public may address the Board at this time with regard to matters within the 

Board’s jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda.  State law prohibits the Board of Directors 

from discussing or taking action on items not included on the agenda.  Members of the public 

will have the opportunity for public comment on any item listed on the agenda when it is 

addressed on the agenda.  Please limit comments to three (3) minutes or less. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR –  

 

 Draft Minutes April 17, 2019 

 Draft Minutes May 1, 2019 

 Special Meeting “Closed Session” Draft Minutes – May 15, 2019 

 Draft Minutes May 15, 2019 
 

PRESENTATION BY MOJAVE WATER AGENCY – GENERAL MANAGER TOM 

MCARTHY- Receive for information only. 
 

BUDGET APPROVAL – Recommend that the Board of Directors receive report and approve 

2019/2020 budget. 
 

ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 19-997 AND RESOLUTION NO. 19-998 OF INTENTION 

TO DISSOLVE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #1 AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #2- 

AGM Greer -Recommend that the Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 19-997 and 

Resolution No. 19-998.  

 

CONSIDER REPLACEMENT OF BALL AND CHECK VALVES AS WATER 

METERS ARE REPLACED AT A COST OF $500,250 OVER FIVE YEARS – AGM 

Greer –Recommend that the Board of Directors authorize replacement of ball and check valves 

as water meters are replaced over the next five (5) years. 
 

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT – Mr. Gil Granito 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT –  Curt Sauer 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 1 of 47



 

13. 
 

 

 

 

 

14. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

15. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

16. 

 

 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS & REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

 Public Outreach Consultant – Kathleen Radnich 

 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES  
 

 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) – June 6, 2019 – Director Luckman 
 

 Finance Committee – June 12, 2019 – President Johnson & Vice President Unger 
 

 Water Resources and Operations Committee – June 12, 2019– Director Hund &  

Director Reynolds 
 

 Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors – June 13, 2019 – Director Reynolds 
 

 Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts (ASBCSD) Dinner at Percy 

Bakker Community Center, Hesperia, CA – June 17, 2019 -Vex Robotics Demonstration –  

Director Reynolds. 

 

CLOSED SESSION- At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54957 (b) (1) to discuss and consider the appointment/employment 

of an Acting/Interim General Manager effective following Mr. Sauer’s scheduled retirement 

and to consult with the Board’s designated representatives (Ad Hoc Negotiating Committee 

members, President Johnson & Director Reynolds) pursuant to Government Code Section 

54957.6, the potential compensation for said position.  Action on this matter will be considered 

in Open Session at the June 19, 2019 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION - 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

    
 

INFORMATION 

The public is invited to comment on any item on the Agenda during discussion of that item. 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 

District at (760) 974-0072, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 

accommodation. 
 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 

public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 

Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 2 of 47



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 17, 2019 
 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30 

p.m.  
 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – President Johnson, Vice President Unger, Director Hund, Director 

Luckman, and Director Reynolds. 
 

STAFF PRESENT -Curt Sauer, GM, Mark Ban, AGM-Operations, Susan Greer, AGM-Fin, and Beverly 

Waszak, Executive Assistant 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT - Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – President Johnson moved to table Item #7 Public Hearing  No. 5 to May 1, 

2019, and to table Item #8 and Item #9 back to the Finance Committee for further review. Vice President 

Unger moved Item # 12, Appointment of Tom Floen to the CAC to Item #7.  
 

MSC¹ (Reynolds/Unger) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – The draft minutes of the regular Board meeting March 20, 2019, February 2019 

Check Register and the 2nd Quarter Ending 12/31/2018. Both the February check register and the 2nd quarter 

ending 12/31/2018 were reviewed by the Finance Committee on April 10, 2019. 
 

Director Reynolds made a motion to approve the consent calendar.  Vice President Unger seconded. 

 

MSC¹ (Reynolds/Unger) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

APPOINTMENT OF THOMAS FLOEN TO THE CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE – 

Vice President Unger read the criteria in order to be appointed to the Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC), 

She continued to read Mr. Floen’s bio followed by each of the Board members praised Mr. Floen for 

continuing to be a part of the JBWD.   
 

Director Hund made a motion to confirm Mr. Thomas Floen to the Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC).  

Vice President Unger seconded. 

 

MSC¹ (Hund/Unger) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

 

WELL 14 – AGM Ban gave an update on Well 14, the 4-LOG treatment, and what it will cost and the costs 

to maintain the 4-LOG treatment.  A brief Q&A period followed with the Board. 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 3 of 47



PUBLIC COMMENT – 
 

Al Marquez, Sunfair, commented that it has cost over one million dollars to rehabilitate Well 14 when it 

should have only cost $270,000.00.  Mr. Marquez then quoted the misinformation from the news media. 
 

Tom Floen, Joshua Tree stated that Well 14 is the largest producing well in the entire region.  Well 14 had 

not been cleaned in 32 years so it’s very hard to know in advance of what you might find when you finally 

reach 400-500 feet below the surface. Full speed ahead let’s get it up and running. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT CLOSED –  
 

Director Luckman made a motion to direct the General Manager to move forward with constructing the 

necessary infrastructure and implementation of 4-LOG treatment at Well 14, at a cost not to exceed 

$205,000.00 to include recommended facility improvements totaling $237,000.00 for a total of 

$442,000.00.  Vice President Unger seconded. 
 

MSC¹ (Luckman/Unger) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

PVC PIPE, PARTS, AND MATERIAL PURCHASES – SADDLEBACK WATER-MAIN 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT – After a brief report by AGM Ban, followed by a short Q&A with the Board,  

AGM Ban stated that this was a budgeted item.  President Johnson concurred that he did see it as a 

budgeted item in at the Finance Committee.  He also commented that he would like to see a little more lead 

time since this is the second or third one we have had to rush through because of vendors. 
 

Director Reynolds asked President Johnson if this was a budgeted item and this is why he would like to see 

the Committee meeting minutes in the Board packet. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT –  
 

Al Marquez, Sunfair agreed with Director Reynolds stating we should have audio at least in the Committee 

meetings. 
 

Tom Floen, Joshua Tree North, informed the Board that he has been going to the meetings for a very long 

time.  The Committee meetings are a discussion, with the public and the Committee members going 

through each item.  Mr. Floen feels it is working just fine the way it is. 
 

Gayle Austin, Joshua Tree stated that it is not the JBWD’s responsibility to ensure that every single person 

is informed of every little thing that the JBWD does.  It is each person’s responsibility to ensure they have 

the information and have received the information.  Committee packets and Board packets are on the 

website (which is not mandatory), and they are also emailed, so there is no reason for a person not to be 

informed. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT CLOSED – 
 

 

 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 4 of 47



Director Reynolds made a motion to purchase the Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) pipe, parts, and materials for 

the District’s upcoming Saddleback Water Main Replacement Project based upon the General Manager’s 

lowest responsive, and responsible bid. 
 

MSC¹ (Reynolds/Unger) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

 

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT – Mr. Gil Granito informed the Board he had no report.  Mr. 

Granito apologized to the Board for stepping out of the boardroom to take a conference call with Ms. 

Jennifer Farrell, Rutan & Tucker, LLP. 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT – GM Sauer gave an update on current water conservation with 25.54% 

water savings for March 2019 and 21.47 cumulative water savings from June 2018 to March 2019.  He will 

be off for a few days to get married. 
 

AGM Ban informed the Board that JBWD started recharging on April 6, 2019, and the updated total is 63-

acre-feet and he hopes to wrap it up in early August.   
 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS & REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED- 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant, reported on the United Way Low Income Assistance 

Program, Summerizing classes and Wild Crafting by the Joshua Tree National Park. 
 

Director Luckman reported on the Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors meeting she attended on April 

11, 2019. 
 

Director Reynolds reported on the Association of San Bernardino Special Districts Dinner he attended on 

April 15, 2019. 
 

President Johnson read off the Director’s upcoming meetings and opportunities. 
 

Director Reynolds would like to add Committee Meeting Minutes to the next Agenda. 
 

ADJOURNMENT – President Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:44 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Curt Sauer, General Manager and Board Secretary 

Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 5 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 6 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 7 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 8 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 9 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 10 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 11 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 12 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 13 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 14 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 15 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 16 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 17 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 18 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 19 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 20 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 21 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 22 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 23 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 24 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 25 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 26 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 27 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 28 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 29 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 30 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 31 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 32 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 33 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 34 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 35 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 36 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 37 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 38 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 39 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 40 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 41 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 42 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 43 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 44 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 45 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 46 of 47



Board of Directors Meeting 
June 5, 2019  Page 47 of 47




